
TOWNSHIP OF WYCKOFF
DESIGN REVIEW ADVISORY COMMITTEE (DRAC)

JULY 31, 2012 MEETING MINUTES

Page 1 of 4

Regular Meeting: Tuesday, July 31, 2012 – 7:00 p.m.
Location: West Wing Conference Room, Second floor, Memorial Town Hall

Board Members Present: Michael Madigan, Chairman; James Higgins; Timothy Shanley; Brian
Hubert; Rudy Boonstra, Township Committee Representative to the Design Review Committee;
Township Committeeman Douglas Christie.

Board Members Absent: Connie Harper; Maureen Margaritis; Ed Natale.

Staff Present: Tom Gensheimer, Building Inspector; Susan Schilstra, DRAC Secretary.

The meeting began at 7:00 p.m.

Chairman Madigan asked the applicant and the applicant’s representative to explain the
changes to the site plan that were requested by the Design Review Advisory Committee and the
Planning Board.

1. YEEGROUP PROPERTIES, LLC
BLOCK 237 LOT 7 (B1A zone); 245 Madison Avenue
Minor site plan/variance

The applicant proposes to convert the existing two family residential dwelling into a
professional medical office on the first floor, a residential dwelling unit on the second
floor and remove the existing garage to create additional parking on the site.

Applicant Representation: Mr. David Becker, the applicant’s attorney, Dr. Yee and Mrs. Yee,
the applicants, and Kim Vierheilig, AIA, were present.

Mr. Becker said that the existing building is located in the B1A business triangle zone.  The
building was purchased in December 2011 and the applicant proposes a business on the first
floor and residential dwelling on the second floor.  He reiterated that the following colors will be
used on the building:  Cape Cod gray vinyl siding; Biscayne blue roofing; all of the windows will
be replaced with white double hung windows with mullions on the first and second floor; black
shutters will be placed on the windows and the front door will be recessed.

Kim Vierheilig, architect from LAN Associates, said the proposed work will maintain the
character of the neighborhood.  She said that the building will be further enhanced with the use
of thicker white trim and sills around the windows; signage will be located from the side door
entrance to the building side on Highland Avenue since the recessed front door on Madison
Avenue will only be used for the residential tenant; there will be new stairs and PVC railing and
an ADA ramp to the medical office will be constructed along the side of the building.

Chairman Madigan  questioned what the foundation treatment will consist of.



TOWNSHIP OF WYCKOFF
DESIGN REVIEW ADVISORY COMMITTEE (DRAC)

JULY 31, 2012 MEETING MINUTES

Page 2 of 4

Ms. Vierheilig said the existing foundation will be resurfaced with concrete and the handicapped
ramp will have lattice along the foundation similar to what is proposed by the front porch.  Also
the proposed landscaping will be irrigated.

Mr. Hubert and Mr. Shanley said this proposed architectural is a great improvement to the
proposed rendering presented at a previous meeting.   They thanked the applicant for clarifying
the proposed plans.

Township Committee Representative Boonstra expressed his pleasure with the architectural
detail presented this evening.

Committee Member Hubert said the Design Review Advisory Committee, utilizing the Code of
the Township of Wyckoff, Chapter 186-31, has reviewed the 14 criteria in Section 186-31E,
Design Standards.  Upon review of the design standards (including underground utilities)
contained within, the Committee has determined that the application based on the presentation
from this meeting be referred to the Planning Board for their review and consideration.
Seconded, Committee Member Shanley. Voting in favor: Mr. Higgins, Mr. Shanley, Mr. Hubert
and Chairman Madigan.

2. PARAGON AUTO BODY & COLLISION EXPERTS
BLOCK 260 LOT 2 (B1 zone); 290 Franklin Avenue
Amended site plan/variance

The applicant proposes to construct a new spray booth outside the existing building
(Phase I) and to construct a one-story 6,739 square foot addition to the south side of the
existing building (Phase II).

Applicant Representation: Mr. David Becker, the applicant’s attorney, Ted Worthington, a
principle of Paragon, Jon Riehl, Spray Booth Installer, and Kim Vierheilig, AIA, were present.

Mr. Worthington explained to the Committee that he proposes to add an accessory spray booth
structure at the rear of the building.  This structure will be placed on a concrete slab on grade
and connected to the main building through a breezeway.  The existing spray booth inside the
building will be removed and the space will be used for something else.

Chairman Madigan discussed the new painting technology with a ready made modular spray
booth.

Mr. Riehl said the industry is becoming more environmental friendly and the State of New
Jersey is moving towards this technology of water base paint so there will not be any solvents
used or chemical exhaust.

Committee Member Hubert asked what the noise level or decibel would be for this free standing
building.



TOWNSHIP OF WYCKOFF
DESIGN REVIEW ADVISORY COMMITTEE (DRAC)

JULY 31, 2012 MEETING MINUTES

Page 3 of 4

Mr. Riehl said there will be no noise level.

Chairman Madigan asked what the timing would be when this structure is constructed in Phase I
and when the Phase II structure will be constructed? He also inquired as to what the color of
the proposed structure will be.

Mr. Worthington said the timing will be 16 to 18 months between Phase I and Phase II.  He said
this proposed spray booth structure will then be incorporated within the new Phase II building.
He said the color of the modular building will be off white and almost identical to the existing
building.

Committee Member Hubert noted that a canopy is located in the rear of this structure.

Mr. Riehl said a car will enter this structure, get sprayed and bake and then exit out the other
side of the booth under this canopy.  The canopy will be a shade of blue.

Township Committee Representative Boonstra asked the applicant about the landscaping that
is depicted in the pictures.

Mr. Worthington said that landscaping was added to the architectural drawings because he
does not want this building to look like a body shop.  He said there is an island of landscaping in
the middle of the parking lot which will screen the activities in the rear of the property.

Township Committeeman Christie noted the business signs on the building and suggested the
main sign be relocated onto a stone wall near the front of the parking lot.

Tom Gensheimer suggested in Phase II that a permanent gable roof architectural feature
overhang be placed over the new garage door to match the permanent gable roof architecture
feature overhang on the front of the existing building.

Kim Vierheilig said the exterior finish on the Phase II building will be EIFS material and will
match the existing building. Aluminum windows with red frames will be added to the new
building to match the existing building windows.

Chairman Madigan summarized the meeting by making the following suggestions/advisements:
1. During the installation of the spray booth under Phase I a landscape island will be

incorporated into the parking lot to make it aesthetically pleasing for the purpose of
screening the spray booth and activities in the rear of the building.

2. The color of the spray booth will be white but if it does not blend with the existing
building than just the front of the spray booth building will be painted to match the
existing building.  The BLOWTHERM logo over the door of the proposed spray booth
will be removed.

3. If Phase II does not begin construction within 24 months after Phase I is completed
then the exterior spray booth will be removed.



TOWNSHIP OF WYCKOFF
DESIGN REVIEW ADVISORY COMMITTEE (DRAC)

JULY 31, 2012 MEETING MINUTES

Page 4 of 4

4. During Phase I the existing pole and sign will remain in its current location.  It is
suggested that the sign be moved closer to the ground and near the parking lot
during Phase II.

Chairman Madigan continued:
1. A permanent gable roof architectural feature overhang similar to the permanent

gable roof architectural feature overhang on the Franklin Avenue side will be placed
over the new garage door fronting Franklin Avenue to make it symmetrical to accent
the building and break up the plain façade of the new building.

The Design Review Advisory Committee thanked Mr.  Worthington for his presentation and
matching the existing building.

Committee Member Huber said the Design Review Advisory Committee, utilizing the Code of
the Township of Wyckoff, Chapter 186-31, has reviewed the 14 criteria in Section 186-31E,
Design Standards.  Upon review of the design standards contained within, the Committee has
determined that the application based on the presentation from this meeting be referred to the
Board of Adjustment for their review and consideration. Seconded, Committee Member
Shanley.  Voting in favor:  Mr. Higgins,  Mr. Shanley, Mr. Hubert and Chairman Madigan.

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:28 p.m.

Susan Schilstra, Secretary
Design Review Advisory Committee


